

76 South Main St. RECEIVED-DUCKE PARTON DHIO 44308

2009 OCT -2 PM 12: 20

October 2, 2009

PUC0

Betty McCauley Chief of Docketing The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio 180 East Broad Street Columbus, OH 43215

SUBJECT:

Case Nos. 09-27-EL-ATA

06-0653-EL-ORD 89-6006-EL-TRF

Dear Ms. McCauley:

In response pursuant to the Commission's Order in Docket No. 06-653-EL-ORD requiring changes to Ohio Edison Company's Electric Service Tariffs and the modification of specific line extension language therein, enclosed please find an original and 15 copies of the proposed filing for Ohio Edison Company.

Please open a new ATA docket and assign a case number. Also please file one copy of this filing in Case No. 06-0653-EL-ORD, one copy in Case No. 89-6006-EL-TRF, and return two time-stamped copies (with the assigned case number) in the enclosed envelope.

Thank you.

Sincerely,

Steven E. Ouellette

Director, Rates & Regulatory Affairs

Enclosures

This is to certify that the images appearing are an accurate and complete reproduction of a case file document delivered in the regular course of business document delivered in the regular course of business and pate processed 10-2-09

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO

Application NOT Involving an Increase in Rates, pursuant to Section 4909.18 Revised Code

1	In the Matter of the Application of Ohio Edison Company to modify specific line extension language in the Electric Service Regulations)) Case No. 09- <u>894</u> -EL-ATA) Case No. 06-0653-EL-ORI) Case No. 89-6006-EL-TRI	
	1. APP	LICANT RESPECTFULLY PROPOSES:	(Check	applicable proposals)
		New Service		Change in Rule or Regulation
		New Classification		Reduction Rates
_		Change in Classification		Correction of Error
_	X	Other, not involving increase in rates		
		Various related and unrelated textual revi	ision, wi	thout change in intent
2.	DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Reflect changes proposed pursuant to the Commission's Order in Docket No. 06-653-EL-ORD requiring the modification of specific line extension language for Ohio Edison Company.			
3.	TARIFFS AFFECTED: (If more than 2, use additional sheets)			
4.	Attach	Attached hereto and made a part hereof are: (Check applicable Exhibits)		
	_X	Exhibit A - existing schedule sheets (to	be supe	rseded) if applicable
	<u>X</u>	Exhibit B - proposed schedule sheets		

Exhibit C-1

- a) if new service is proposed, describe;
 Description included on attached Exhibit C-1.
- b) if new equipment is involved, describe (preferably with a picture, brochure, etc.) and where appropriate, a statement distinguishing proposed service from existing services;
- c) if proposed service results from customer requests, so state, giving if available, the number and type of customers requesting proposed service.
- Exhibit C-2 if a change of classification, rule or regulation is proposed, a statement explaining reason for change.
- X Exhibit C-3 statement explaining reason for any proposal not covered in Exhibits C-1 or C-2.
- 5. This application will not result in an increase in any rate, joint rate, toll, classification, charge or rental.
- 6. Applicant respectfully requests the Commission to approve the requested changes to Ohio Edison Company's Electric Service Tariffs and the modification of specific line extension language and to authorize Ohio Edison Company to file same in final form, and to be in the form and content shown in Exhibit B.

Ebony L. Miller Attorney

NAME and TITLE

76 South Main Street Akron, Ohio 44308 ADDRESS

330-384-5969 TELEPHONE NUMBER

7th Revised Page 1 of 2

Effective: October 1, 2009

TABLE OF CONTENTS

The following rates, rules and regulations for electric service are applicable throughout the Company's service territory except as noted.

Company of Borroot tarmery except at neces.	Sheet	Effective <u>Date</u>
	Sneet	Date
TABLE OF CONTENTS	1	10-01-0 9
DEFINITION OF TERRITORY	3	01-23-09
ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS	4	05-01-09
ELECTRIC SERVICE SCHEDULES		
Residential Service (Rate "RS")	10	01-23-09
General Service - Secondary (Rate "GS")	20	01-23-09
General Service - Primary (Rate "GP")	21	01-23-09
General Service - Subtransmission (Rate "GSU")	22	01-23-09
General Service - Transmission (Rate "GT")	23	01-23-09
Street Lighting Provisions	30	01-23-09
Street Lighting (Rate "STL")	31	06-01 -0 9
Traffic Lighting (Rate "TRF")	32	01-23-09
Private Outdoor Lighting (Rate "POL")	33	06-01 -09
MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES	75	01-23-09
OTHER SERVICE		
Cogeneration and Small Power Production	50	01-01-03
Pole Attachment	51	01-01-03
Residential Renewable Energy Credit Purchase Program	60	10-01 -0 9
Interconnection Tariff	82	01-01-09

P.U.C.O. No. 11

Akron, Ohio

1st Revised Page 7 of 23

Effective: May 1, 2009

ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS

B. Line Extensions

1. Definitions:

General Service Installation - Any Line Extension request for Secondary, Primary or Subtransmission level service by a commercial or industrial customer, builder, or developer, or any other Line Extension that is not either a Residential Installation or a Transmission Installation. Customers in a development may be required to have their own General Service Installation in order to be connected to the Company's distribution system.

<u>Line Extension</u> - the provision of such facilities (poles, fixtures, wires and appurtenances) as are necessary for delivering electrical energy to one or more customers located such that they cannot be adequately supplied from a secondary system of the Company's existing distribution system.

<u>Multi-Family Installation</u> - Any Line Extension to a new residential dwelling that will have two or more dwelling units, where each unit has a separate account for electric service with the Company.

Non-Standard Single Family Installation - Any Line Extension to a new home (or home site) where the service connection requested is no more than 200 amp/single phase service, where the Company's cost to build the Line Extension is \$5,000 or greater, and where no premium service is requested. A home with a Non-Standard Single Family Installation will have one account for electric service with the Company.

<u>Residential Installation</u> - A Standard Single Family Installation, a Non-Standard Single Family Installation, or a Multi-Family Installation.

<u>Standard Single Family Installation</u> - Any Line Extension to a new home (or home site) where the service requested is no more than 200 amp/single phase service, where the Company's cost to build the Line Extension is less than \$5,000, and where no premium service has been requested. A home with a Standard Single Family Installation will have one account for electric service with the Company.

<u>Transmission Installation</u> - Any Line Extension request for Transmission Service by a commercial or industrial customer, builder or developer.

<u>Premium Installation</u> – Any Line Extension including, but not limited to, customer-requested oversizing of facilities and underground construction.

2. Terms And Conditions:

Premium Service:

a. For any residential project, where a customer, builder, or developer requests a Line Extension involving a "Premium Installation", the customer, builder, or developer shall make an up-front payment to the Company equal to the Company's cost to provide the Premium Installation minus the Company's cost to install a Line Extension for 200 amp/single phase service for the project.

Effective: May 1, 2009

ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS

- b. For any general service project, where a customer, builder, or developer requests a Line Extension involving a "Premium Installation", the customer, builder, or developer shall make an up-front payment to the Company equal to the Company's cost to provide the Premium Installation minus the Company's least cost to install, in accordance with good utility practice, a standard line extension to the project.
- 3. Line Extensions On Private Property: Customers that require Line Extensions to be constructed on their private property shall, in all cases, provide, without cost to the Company, land clearance, trenching and backfilling (including excavation for and installation of vaults), and an easement for right-of-way in a form acceptable to the Company before the Company's construction is started. The expectation that property will be dedicated to the public use at the conclusion of construction shall not preclude such property from being deemed the customer's private property for purposes of this subsection 3. All Line Extensions shall be the property of and shall be operated and maintained by the Company. The Company shall have the right to use such Line Extension in furnishing service to any applicant located adjacent to such Line Extension and the further right to construct other extensions from the distribution facilities so constructed. Except as provided herein, no customer or third party installation of Line Extension facilities will be permitted on private property or public right-of-way.
- 4. Relocation For Residential, Commercial Or Industrial Customer: A change in location of an overhead or underground service for the customer's convenience shall be made at the customer's expense.
- Relocation For Highway, Street Or Public Works Project: A change in location of an
 overhead or underground service to provide space necessary for highway, street, or public
 works projects shall be made in accordance with the contractual agreement with the
 government entity involved.

6. Other Items:

- a. The Company shall not be required to begin construction on any Line Extension until all required applications have been made by the customer, developer, or builder, as applicable.
- b. The Company shall not be required to install Line Extensions using rear lot line construction. The Company may elect, however, to use rear lot line construction at no additional cost to the customer.
- c. Line Extension cost estimates should not include costs normally incurred by the utility to maintain, protect, or upgrade its distribution system. Nor should system improvements required for the general distribution system that serves multiple customers, which are driven by the customer's load addition, be factored into the Line Extension calculations.

VIII. USE OF SERVICE

- A. Increased Loads: The customer shall notify the Company of any significant additions or modifications to the customer's facilities that will affect the customer's load characteristics so that the Company may provide facilities sufficient to maintain adequate service.
- B. Individual Customer Metering: Service will be supplied under the appropriate rate schedule, to each separate dwelling (single or part of a multiple unit), apartment, farm, commercial or industrial establishment as one customer through one meter or one unified set of meters for each class of service.

P.U.C.O. No. 11

7th-8th Revised Page 1 of 2

TABLE OF CONTENTS

The following rates, rules and regulations for electric service are applicable throughout the Company's service territory except as noted.

	Sheet	Effective <u>Date</u>
TABLE OF CONTENTS	1	10-01-09
DEFINITION OF TERRITORY	3	01-23-09
ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS	4	05-01-09
ELECTRIC SERVICE SCHEDULES		
Residential Service (Rate "RS")	10	01-23-09
General Service - Secondary (Rate "GS")	20	01-23-09
General Service - Primary (Rate "GP")	21	01-23-09
General Service - Subtransmission (Rate "GSU")	22	01-23-09
General Service - Transmission (Rate "GT")	23	01-23-09
Street Lighting Provisions	30	01-23-09
Street Lighting (Rate "STL")	31	06-01-09
Traffic Lighting (Rate "TRF")	32	01-23-09
Private Outdoor Lighting (Rate "POL")	33	06-01-09
MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES	75	01-23-09
OTHER SERVICE		
Cogeneration and Small Power Production	50	01-01-03
Pole Attachment	51	01 -01-0 3
Residential Renewable Energy Credit Purchase Program	60	10-01-09
Interconnection Tariff	82	01-01-09

Filed pursuant to Order dated May 27,	2009, in Case No. 08-935-EL-SSO et
al.	, before
The Public	: Utilities Commission of Ohio
Issued by: Richard R. Grigg, President	Effective: October 1, 2009

P.U.C.O. No. 11

4st-2nd Revised Page 7 of 25

ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS

B. Line Extensions

1. Definitions:

Contribution in aid of construction - any amount of money or property contributed to the Company to the extent that the purpose of the contribution is to provide for Line Extensions for new or expanded customer loads.

Cost estimate - the detailed projected expenditure, including material costs and overhead, equipment costs and overhead, labor costs and overhead, and all taxes associated with each major material and service component, required for a Line Extension.

General Sservice linstallation - any Line Extension request for Secondary, Primary or Subtransmission level service by a commercial or industrial customer, builder, or developer, or any other Line Extension that is not either a Residential linstallation or a Transmission Installation. Customers in a development may be required to have their own General Service linstallation in order to be connected to the Company's distribution system.

<u>Line Extension</u> - the provision of such-facilities (<u>including</u>, but not limited to, poles, fixtures, wires and appurtenances) as are necessary for delivering electrical energy from the point where a <u>Line Extension</u> connects with and receives energy from any existing transmission or distribution equipment (the nearest practical point to the customer(s) to be served by the <u>Line Extension</u> at which the appropriate voltage level is available) to one or moreof a customers points of delivery located such that they cannot be adequately supplied from a secondary system of the Company's existing distribution system.

<u>Multi-Ffamily linstallation</u> - any Line Extension to a new residential dwelling that will have two or more dwelling units, where each unit has a separate account for electric service with the Company.

Non-standard multi-family installation - any Line Extension to a new residential dwelling that will have two or more dwelling units, where each unit has a separate account for electric service with the Company where the Company's cost to build the Line Extension is greater than \$2,500, excluding any Premium installation cost.

Non-Sstandard Ssingle Ffamily linstallation - any Line Extension to a new home (or home site) with one account for electric service with the Company where the service connection requested is no more than 200 amp/single phase service, where the Company's cost to build the Line Extension is greater than \$5,000, excluding any Premium installation cost or greater, and where no premium service is requested. A home with a Non-Standard Single Family Installation will have one account for electric service with the Company.

Premium installation - any Line Extension that is in excess of the standard construction and requirements necessary to provide electric service to the customer, including, but not limited to, customer-requested oversizing of facilities, underground construction, Residential Installations exceeding 200 amps and three phase Residential installations.

Premium installation cost - the sum of the Company's cost to provide Premium installation minus the sum of the Company's cost of the standard construction and requirements necessary to provide electric service to the customer.

Filed pursuant to Order dated January 21, 2009	, in Case No. 07-561-EL-AIR ,	
bei	fore	
The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio		
Issued by: Richard R. Grigg, President	Effective: May 1, 2009	

P.U.C.O. No. 11

4⁴-2nd Revised Page 8 of 25

ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS

Residential linetallation - a Standard Ssingle Ffamily linetallation, a Non-Sstandard Ssingle Ffamily linetallation, or a Standard Mmulti-Ffamily linetallation or a Non-standard multi-family installation for a single phase Line Extension.

Standard multi-family installation - any Line Extension to a new residential dwelling that will have two or more dwelling units, where each unit has a separate account for electric service with the Company where the Company's cost to build the Line Extension is less than or equal to \$2,500 excluding any Premium installation cost.

Standard Ssingle Ffamily Iinstallation - any Line Extension to a new home (or home site) with one account for electric service with the Company where the service requested is no more than 200 amp/single phase service, where the Company's cost to build the Line Extension is less than or equal to \$5,000, excluding any Premium installation cost and where no premium service has been requested. A home with a Standard Single Family Installation will have one account for electric service with the Company.

<u>Transmission Installation</u> - Any Line Extension request for Transmission Service by a sommercial or industrial customer, builder or developer.

<u>Premium Installation</u> — Any Line Extension including, but not limited to, customer requested eversizing of facilities and underground construction.

2. Terms And Conditions:

Residential installations:

Non-standard single family installation:

The customer shall make arrangements with the Company for the payment to the Company of the Company's cost to build the Non-standard single family installation that exceeds \$5,000, excluding any Premium installation cost. The individual homeowner (non-developer) has the option of paying such costs based on the rate of return approved in the Company's then most recent distribution rate case, plus carrying costs, on a prorated monthly basis for up to fifty months.

b. Non-standard multi-family installation:

The customer shall make arrangements with the Company for the payment to the Company of the Company's cost to build the Non-standard multi-family installation that exceeds \$2,500, excluding any Premium installation cost.

General service installations:

A customer requesting a General service installation shall make an up-front payment to the Company equal to 40% of the Company's estimated cost for construction of the Line Extension, plus any and all Premium installation cost.

Premium installationService:

a.For any residential project, where a customer, builder, or developer requests a Line Extension involving a "Premium linstallation", the customer, builder, or developer shall make an up-front payment to the Company equal to the estimated Company's cost to provide the Premium linstallation minus the Company's cost to install a Line Extension for 200 amp/single phase service for the project.

Filed pursuant to Order dated January 21, 2009	, in Case No. 07-551-EL-AIR,	
be	fore	
The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio		
Issued by: Richard R. Gridg President	Effective: May 1, 2000	

P.U.C.O. No. 11

4st-2nd Revised Page 9 of 25

ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS

b.For any general service project, where a customer, builder, or developer requests a Line Extension involving a "Premium Installation", the customer, builder, or developer shall make an up-front payment to the Company equal to the Company's cost to provide the Premium Installation minus the Company's least cost to install, in accordance with good utility practice, a standard line extension to the project.

Future customers:

TOTAL GUOTOTTO,

A customer may be entitled to a refund of a portion of the amounts such customer paid for a Line Extension, other than for Premium Installation. Any amounts refunded shall be paid in accordance with the following:

If a new customer ("Customer 2"), utilizes, within fifty months of the completion of a Line Extension project, all or part of the Line Extension facilities for which contribution in aid of construction ("CIAC") has been paid by a previous customer (the "Original customer"), then the Original customer who paid the CIAC may be entitled to a refund which represents a pro rata portion of the original CIAC, calculated to equitably share the CIAC responsibility for the Line Extension facilities used in service by both Customer 2 and the Original customer. If any new additional customer ("Customer 3"), utilizes, within fifty months of the completion of the Line Extension project, all or part of the Line Extension facilities for which CIAC has been paid by the Original customer and Customer 2, then Customer 2 who paid an equitable portion of the CIAC may also be entitled to a refund.

- 3. Line Extensions On Private Property: Customers that require Line Extensions to be constructed on their private property shall, in all cases, provide, without cost to the Company, land clearance, trenching and backfilling (including excavation for and installation of vaults), and an easement for right-of-way in a form acceptable to the Company before the Company's construction is started. The expectation that property will be dedicated to the public use at the conclusion of construction shall not preclude such property from being deemed the customer's private property for purposes of this subsection 3. All Line Extensions shall be the property of and shall be operated and maintained by the Company. The Company shall have the right to use such Line Extension in furnishing service to any applicant located adjacent to such Line Extension and the further right to construct other extensions from the distribution facilities so constructed. Except as provided herein, no customer or third party installation of Line Extension facilities will be permitted on private property or public right-of-way.
- 4. Relocation For Residential, Commercial Or Industrial Customer: A change in location of an overhead or underground service for the customer's convenience shall be made at the customer's expense.
- 5. Relocation For Highway, Street Or Public Works Project: A change in location of an overhead or underground service to provide space necessary for highway, street, or public works projects shall be made in accordance with the contractual agreement with the government entity involved.

6. Other Items:

- a. The Company shall not be required to begin construction on any Line Extension until all required applications have been made by the customer, developer, or builder, as applicable.
- b. The Company shall not be required to install Line Extensions using rear lot line construction. The Company may elect, however, to use rear lot line construction at no additional cost to the customer.

Filed pursuant to Order dated January 21, 2009	, in Case No. 07-551-EL-AIR ,	
before		
The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio		
Issued by: Richard R. Grigg, President	Effective: May 1, 2009	

P.U.C.O. No. 11

4^{el}-2nd Revised Page 10 of 25

ELECTRIC SERVICE REGULATIONS

c. Line Extension cost estimates should not include costs normally incurred by the utility to maintain, protect, or upgrade its distribution system. Nor should system improvements required for the general distribution system that serves multiple customers, which are driven by the customer's load addition, be factored into the Line Extension calculations.

VIII. USE OF SERVICE

- A. Increased Loads: The customer shall notify the Company of any significant additions or modifications to the customer's facilities that will affect the customer's load characteristics so that the Company may provide facilities sufficient to maintain adequate service.
- B. Individual Customer Metering: Service will be supplied under the appropriate rate schedule, to each separate dwelling (single or part of a multiple unit), apartment, farm, commercial or industrial establishment as one customer through one meter or one unified set of meters for each class of service.

Filed pursuant to Order dated January 21,	2009, in Case No. 07-551 EL AIR ,	
before		
The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio		

Issued by: Richard R. Grigg, President

Effective: May 1, 2009

Statement of Proposal

This tariff filing is designed to make changes to the Company's tariffs which reflect new rules approved in the Commission's May 6, 2009 Order in Docket No. 06-653-EL-ORD. Said rules possess an effective date of June 29, 2009.

VERIFICATION

. . .

State of Ohio, Summit County, ss:			
Name of Officer	VF and Controller , (and) (President) (Vice President)		
Same of Officer	Asst. Corporate Secretary of (Secretary) (Treasurer)		
Ohio Edison Company, being first duly swom hereby verify this application			
Sworn and subscribed before me this day of October, 2009			
	Michela aBuratel		
	Notary Public		

Michale A. Buchtal Resident Summit County Notary Public, State of Ohio My Commission Expires: 08/28/11